
                                  
 

   Board of Trustees Meeting  
May 13, 2019 6:00 pm 

Agenda 
• Call to order 
• Budget presentation 
• Public participation 
• Approval of previous meeting minutes 
• Financial report 

Treasurer’s update 
Personnel report  
Personnel actions 

• Director’s report  
• UHLS report  
• New business 

   Nominating committee 
Audit firm selection 
Scanning proposal 

   UHLS annual celebration 
   Studio Makerspace ceiling proposal 
   Contract attorney discussion 
   Budget vote and trustee election – Tuesday May 21 

Other new business 
• Old business 

Long range capital plan proposal 
HVAC Update 

HVAC maintenance contract 
Other old business 

• Future business 
Background checks 
Plaza feasibility 
Policy updates/schedule 
Resource sharing 
Fines and Fees 

• Public Participation 
• Adjournment 

Next board meeting: June 10, 2019 6:00pm 
Next Friends of the Library meeting: May 20, 2019 6:30pm 

1



    MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY DRAFT 

Monday April 8, 2019 
 
PRESENT: Joyce Becker 

Caroline Brancatella 
Mark Kissinger 
Harmeet Narang 
Mary Redmond 
Lisa Scoons 
Brian Sweeney 
Robert Khalife, treasurer 

 
 

Geoffrey Kirkpatrick, director 
Kristen Roberts, recording secretary 

 
EXCUSED:   
 
 
GUESTS: Tanya Choppy, Accounts Clerk 

Catherine Stollar Peters, Head of Tech Services, Circulation 
Chris McGinty, Head of Public Services 
Marc Gronich 
 

President M. Redmond called the meeting to order at 5:59pm.  
 
PUBLIC PARTICPATION  

None 
 
MINUTES 

Minutes of the 11 March 2019 board meeting were unanimously approved with the following 
amendments on a MOTION by B. Sweeney with a SECOND by M. Kissinger. 
 

• M. Redmond noted that the paragraph about the assistant treasurer discussion should note that 
the board had decided to review whether the position was even necessary.  

• The wording about Paul Mays should indicate that, if hired, he would facilitate the long-range 
planning process. 

 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

On a MOTION by J. Becker with a SECOND by H. Narang, the board unanimously approved 
the Financial Statement dated 31 March 2019 (Manual Disbursements for March $37,282.82; 
Cash Disbursements/Accounts Payable for April $54,698.99; Trust & Agency 
Disbursements/Salaries for March $180,575.41; CapProject Fund/Hand-Drawn Checks for April 
$224.15; Total: $272,781.37). 

Draft Page 1 of 6 

2



TREASURER’S UPDATE 
R. Khalife said he had reviewed all of the financial schedules in the board packet and he was 
satisfied they were accurate. 

• He said that 5 of the 6 firms have indicated they were interested in responding to the library’s 
RFP for auditing services. 

• G. Kirkpatrick, T. Choppy and R. Khalife continue to review the financial responsibilities matrix 
and will have some recommendations after speaking with M. Redmond. 

• R. Khalife, G. Kirkpatrick and T. Choppy met with Judy Kehoe, chief financial officer with 
BCSD, to learn about the district’s investment and accounting practices. R. Khalife also has met 
earlier with Mike Cohen from the town.  

• He has been reviewing H Fund activity for the past 10 years and will provide a summary at the 
next meeting. 

• He noted that interest earnings continue to increase favorably. 
 
BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION REPORT 

The board noted Bank Reconciliations for March 1-31, 2019. 
 

MANUAL INVOICES 
None 
 

RESOLUTIONS 
None 

 
PERSONNEL REPORT 

G. Kirkpatrick noted that the long list of library clerk actions requested mostly represented a 
domino effect of internal moves by staffers seeking different available positions following an internal 
promotion. 

One library page position opened due to resignation. The second 6-hour/week position was 
created from excess hours due to schedule changes.  

The request for a temporary technology assistant position would allow the library to bring in help 
a few hours a week until the new technology assistant starts working at the beginning of May.  

The part-time custodial position is open due to a resignation. 
 
PERSONNEL ACTION 

On a MOTION by L. Scoons with a SECOND B. Sweeney, the board unanimously approved 
new hires for the following vacancies, pending Civil Service approval: 
• Library clerk, part-time, permanent, 13.57 hours/week at $13.45/hour or per contract 
• Library clerk, part-time, permanent, 16.57 hours/week at $13.45/hour or per contract 
• Library clerk, part-time, permanent, 11.66 hours/week at $13.45/hour or per contract 
• Library page, part-time, permanent, 6 hours/week at $11.10/hour or per contract 
• Library page, part-time, permanent, 11.67 hours/week at $11.10/hour or per contract 
• Technology assistant, part-time, temporary, 10-15 hours/week at $18.84/hour or per contract 
• Custodial worker, part-time, permanent, 10 hours/week at $15.45/hour or per contract 

 
 
 

Draft Page 2 of 6 

3



DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
The board noted the director’s report. Additional items: 

• G. Kirkpatrick consulted with an attorney regarding the board’s question about obtaining the title 
to the library building from the school district to avoid SED project review delays. The attorney 
said that although there is a process for the library to obtain the title, construction projects would 
still need to be reviewed. He noted that there does exist a fast-track review process that comes at 
a premium, and most architects and designers are aware of it. M. Redmond said that a positive 
from the discussion is that the board now knows that there is a fast-track process should the 
library ever need to consider it. The board thanked G. Kirkpatrick for getting clarification on the 
issue. 

• He noted that the fire inspection is state-required, and the school’s certificate of occupancy is 
based on it. The library is now in compliance with all of the findings from this year, but notice 
has been given about what they could be looking at in coming years. M Redmond requested we 
follow up with a Library attorney, to determine what latitude we have on the additional findings, 
particularly removal of all items in hallways. 

• G. Kirkpatrick noted that the Bethlehem Chamber did an excellent job with the ribbon cutting, 
and he was appreciative of all of the officials who spoke at the event. 

• The gas bill continues to be high, but a series of fixes to the CO2 monitoring have just been 
completed, so it’s too soon to tell if there will be future reductions. The library is also 
approaching the end of the heating season.  
 

UPPER HUDSON LIBRARY SYSTEM REPORT 
L. Scoons said annual UHLS celebration will be held Wednesday, June 12, at the Holiday Inn 
Express in Latham. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Long-range capital plan proposal 
The design services proposal from Butler Rowland Mays was received over the weekend. The 

total came in at $41,000 plus reimbursables for three phases of design planning: Existing Conditions, 
Program and Design.  

G. Kirkpatrick said that the design planning process would fulfill the regulatory obligation of the 
library to create a long range plan focusing on services and facilities. It would also provide a 
playbook for the next 10 years and map out the collective goals of the library in terms of 
programming, safety, maintenance and the added value “win” projects, including the use of the 54 
Borthwick property. The first phase of the process would include a deep dive in the existing facility 
needs, which would be of real value to current and future boards. The final phase would result in a 
conceptual design that would incorporate long-range goals. 

B. Sweeney said he had some questions about the cost of the individual phases, and noted that 
the existing conditions review for $11,000 seemed reasonable, but the program fee of $12,000 
seemed a bit high for what was being described in the proposal. The board discussed potential 
reasons for the cost, including a lot of in-person interviews and meetings with the public, but they 
agreed they would want more details about what would be involved. 

The board discussed whether the overall price of the process was reasonable and where savings 
could be negotiated. 

R. Khalife said they should talk to other libraries that have been through the process. 
Draft Page 3 of 6 

 

4



G. Kirkpatrick said the process would help the board figure out a framework as to how they can 
move forward with their ideas for future library needs and the decisions that need to be made to meet 
those goals.  

C. Brancatella said that while there might not be much room in negotiating for price, the board 
should really be looking at how they can get the most out of this service in terms of results. 

B. Sweeney said he would not want the planning process to slow any progress on addressing the 
plaza icing issue. M. Redmond said that while she believes the Existing Conditions planning phase is 
a given, she agrees that it should not delay moving forward with fixing the plaza. 

L. Scoons said she would like to see a better breakdown in the proposal of how long each of the 
phases would be expected to take. C. Brancatella agreed that timeliness in communication and the 
work involved should be a key component in the board’s decision to move forward with the 
proposal.  

The board was generally in favor of the first phase of the proposal, but said they would table a 
decision until May so they could have a chance to review and document any questions about the 
proposal regarding price, the timeline, end result and any other issues. They agreed to review and 
compile their comments and concerns by April 15, so they could be addressed, by Paul Mays, in 
time to have a clearer idea about how to move forward at the May meeting.  

 
Records retention and records manager resolutions 
The board reviewed two resolutions regarding records retention at the library. G. Kirkpatrick 

said that putting a records management official in place opens up opportunities for grant money for 
digitization projects.  

 
On a MOTION by M. Kissinger with a SECOND by L. Scoons the board unanimously adopted 
Resolution 1901 establishing Records and Retention Disposition Schedule MI-1, pursuant to 
Article 57-A of the Arts and Cultural Affairs Law, AND Resolution 1902 appointing Catherine 
Stollar Peters as Records Management Officer for Bethlehem Public Library. 

 
SED facilities review information 
This was discussed earlier during the director’s report.  
 
Other new business 
On a MOTION by C. Brancatella with a SECOND by J. Becker the board unanimously approved 

Chris McGinty’s request to attend the BookExpo in NYC from May 28-June 1 for an estimated total 
cost of $1,490. 

  
The board reviewed the current PILOT MOU to run through June 30, 2023. G. Kirkpatrick said 

that it is the same one that has been in place for past years. PILOT money received by the library 
amounts to about $200,000 per year.  

 
On a MOTION by H. Narang and a SECOND by J. Becker the board unanimously accepted the 

PILOT Memorandum of Agreement with the Bethlehem Central School District through June 30, 2023. 
 
The board noted that it would be beneficial to have a lawyer to review library contracts in the 

future. 
Draft Page 4 of 6 

5



 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
Annual school district safety inspection 
Discussed earlier. 

 
HVAC update 
G. Kirkpatrick said that the project has not yet been closed out because of ongoing tweaks to the 

system. The library has received an extension on the $26,000 left in grant money, but it cannot be 
handed over until the project is closed out. H. Narang said it would be hard to make the argument 
that it wasn’t still an ongoing project. M. Redmond said she would like to be sure that all options for 
tweaking the system have been exhausted before closing out on the project. Because some of the 
major changes to the CO2 monitoring were only made recently, the data is not yet in on whether it is 
an effective solution. M. Redmond noted that the library will have to make a decision in 4-6 weeks 
on a maintenance contract. The board agreed they were not yet ready to close out the project. 

 
Friends of the Library Book Bash 
The sale will be taking place the coming weekend. G. Kirkpatrick said the Friends would be 

grateful for volunteers. 
 

Other old business 
The board noted that they had intended to discuss First Night participation at the April meeting. 

G. Kirkpatrick said he would not be in town for the event. Because the event is difficult to staff, the 
board agreed that the library would not be participating in future First Night events. 
 
FUTURE BUSINESS 
 

Background checks 
No further discussion at this time. 

 
Plaza feasibility 
No further discussion at this time. 
 
Policy updates/schedule 
No further discussion at this time. 
 
Resource sharing 
No further discussion at this time. 
 
Fines and fees 
No further discussion at this time. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

There was no public participation 
 

Draft Page 5 of 6 

6



ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a MOTION by J. Becker with a SECOND by C. Brancatella, the board adjourned the regular 
meeting at 7:51pm. 

 
 
Prepared by      Cosigned by 
Kristen Roberts, recording secretary   M. Redmond, board president 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft Page 6 of 6 

7



Real Property Taxes 142,908.65

PILOT 0.00

Sale of Equipment 0.00

Fines 2,106.52

Interest on Investment 2,390.70

Sale of Books 459.00

Gifts and Donations 0.00

Insurance Recovery 0.00

Photocopier 860.10

State Aid 0.00

Grants 0.00

Miscellaneous Income 50.00

Total $148,774.97

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT #10

4/30/2019

CURRENT MONTHLY REVENUE

8



BUDGET YEAR TO DATE

UNFAVORABLE 

(FAVORABLE) 

VARIANCE DIFF. PERCENT

Real Property Taxes 3,934,858.00 3,932,475.26 2,382.74 ####### 99.94%

PILOT 196,336.00 197,033.70 (697.70) 697.70 100.36%

Sale of Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Fines 30,000.00 28,350.83 1,649.17 ####### 94.50%

Interest on Investment 5,000.00 13,414.34 (8,414.34) 8,414.34 268.29%

Sale of Books 6,000.00 4,369.33 1,630.67 ####### 72.82%

Gifts and Donations, Misc 1,000.00 1,050.00 (50.00) 50.00 105.00%

Insurance Recovery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Photocopier 7,000.00 7,159.77 (159.77) 159.77 102.28%

State Aid 23,000.00 25,036.70 (2,036.70) 2,036.70 108.86%

Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00)

Miscellaneous Income 0.00 425.00 (425.00)

Sub-Total $4,203,194.00 4,234,314.93 (5,695.93) 5,695.93 100.74%

Appropriated Funds Balance $0.00

TOTAL $4,203,194.00

TD Checking Account: 1,770,933.42 *

TD Money Market: 1,626,007.26

TD Payroll Account: 0.00

Capital Project Fund: 261,836.08

TOTAL 3,658,776.76

*Includes Interest of $2,390.70 credited on 4/15/19

FINANCIAL STATEMENT #10

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

OPERATING CASH SUMMARY

FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019

REPORT OF ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL YTD REVENUES

4/30/2019

9



MANUAL DISBURSEMENTS - APRIL

HAND DRAWN CHECKS TD BANK $45,078.32

CASH DISBURSEMENTS - MAY

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TD BANK $71,283.98

TRUST & AGENCY DISBURSEMENTS - APRIL

SALARIES - TD BANK $189,536.10

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

HAND DRAWN CHECKS - MAY $0.00

TOTAL $305,898.40

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT #10

4/30/2019

10



11



12



13



14



ACCOUNT PREVIOUS BALANCE RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS ENDING BALANCE

TD Bank General Fund $1,889,988.46 $170,258.37 $289,313.41 $1,770,933.42

TD Bank Payroll $0.00 $129,288.92 $129,288.92 $0.00

TD Bank Money Market $1,626,007.26 $0.00 $0.00 $1,626,007.26

Capital Project Fund $262,060.23 $0.00 $224.15 $261,836.08

TOTAL: $3,778,055.95 $299,547.29 $418,826.48 $3,658,776.76

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION SUMMARY

4/30/2019

15



For the month beginning 4-1-19 and ending 4-30-19

Balance on hand at the beginning of the month $1,889,988.46

Receipts during the month      

Interest 2,390.70

Transfers from Money Maket Account TD Bank 0.00

Fines 2,106.52

Copier 860.10

Miscellaneous (Abate) 21,483.09

Book Sale 459.00

PILOT 0.00

School Taxes 142,908.96

Gifts 0.00

Sale of Equipment 0.00

Grants 0.00

State/System Aid 0.00

Miscellaneous Income 50.00

Total Receipts $170,258.37

Total Receipts Including Balance $2,060,246.83

Disbursements During Month By Check

From Check #337924 to Check #37941 45,078.32

Trust & Agency Payments (Payroll) 189,536.10

From Check #37861 to Check #37918 54,698.99

Transfers to Money Maket Account 0.00

Adjustment 0.00

Total amount of Disbursements $289,313.41

Balance on Hand at End of Month $1,770,933.42

Reconciliation With Bank Statement

Total Amount of Cash Balance on Deposit

as shown by Bank Statement 1,770,933.42

Amount of Outstanding Checks 49,627.79

Balance on Deposit 1,721,305.63

Received by Board of Trustees and This is to certify that the above

entered as part of the minutes of Board statement is in agreement with

Meeting held on _______________     my bank statement.

                                           __________________________

Secretary Business Manager

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION REPORT

TD Bank - General Fund

16



BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

Outstanding Checks - TD Bank

General Fund

4/30/19

Check Number Date Amount

37795 3/12/2019 75.00 Performer - left email

37971 4/9/2019 25.00

37887 4/9/2019 864.00

37895 4/9/2019 350.00

37903 4/9/2019 3,100.00

37910 4/9/2019 500.00

37918 4/9/2019 25.00

37927 4/17/2019 25.00

37933 4/29/2019 415.92

37934 4/29/2019 13,400.19

37935 4/29/2019 5,111.90

37936 4/29/2019 5,562.80

37937 4/29/2019 86.70

37938 4/29/2019 122.77

37931 4/30/2019 2,236.90

37939 4/30/2019 14,284.53

37940 4/30/2019 126.98

37941 4/30/2019 127.77

100350 4/30/2019 3,187.33

TOTAL $49,627.79

17



BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION REPORT

TD Bank - Payroll Account

For the month beginning 4-1-19 and ending 4-30-19

Balance on hand at the beginning of the month $0.00

Receipts during the month

Transfer from Checking 4/15/19 64,582.42

Transfer from Checking 4/30/19 64,706.50

Total Receipts $129,288.92

Total Receipts Including Balance $129,288.92

Disbursements During Month By Check

4/15/19 - From Check #85797 to Check #85868 64,582.42

4/30/19 - From Check #85867 to Check #85941 64,706.50

Total Amount of Disbursements $129,288.92

Balance on Hand at End of Month $0.00

Reconciliation With Bank Statement

Total Amount of Cash Balance on Deposit

as shown by bank statement 2,939.46

Amount of Outstanding Checks 2,939.46

Balance on Deposit $0.00

Received by Board of Trustees and This is to certify that the above

entered as part of the minutes of Board statement is in agreement with

Meeting held on ___________________ my bank statement.

_________________________________ __________________________

Secretary Business Manager

18



BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

Outstanding Checks

TD Bank Payroll Fund

4/30/19

Check Number Date Amount

85884 4/30/2019 1,586.97

85895 4/30/2019 30.76

85897 4/30/2019 409.57

85914 4/30/2019 158.79

85926 4/30/2019 753.37

TOTAL 2,939.46

19



BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION REPORT

TD Bank - Money Market Account

For the month beginning 4-1-19 and ending 4-30-19

Balance on hand at the beginning of the month $1,626,007.26

Receipts during the month

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Total Receipts $0.00

Total Receipts Including Balance $1,626,007.26

Disbursements During Month By Check

Transfers to General Fund 0.00

Transfers to Capital Projects Fund 0.00

Total Amount of Disbursements $0.00

Balance on Hand at End of Month $1,626,007.26

Reconciliation With Bank Statement

Total Amount of Cash Balance on Deposit

as shown by Bank Statement 1,626,007.26

Amount of Outstanding Checks 0.00

Balance on Deposit 1,626,007.26

Received by Board of Trustees and This is to certify that the above

entered as part of the minutes of Board statement is in agreement with

Meeting held on ___________________ my bank statement.

_________________________________ __________________________

Secretary Business Manager

20



BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

BANK ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION REPORT

Capital Project Fund Account (HVAC, Technology & Misc.)

TD Bank

For the month beginning 4-1-19 and ending 4-30-19

Balance on hand at the beginning of the month $262,060.23

Receipts during the month 

Technology Fund Donation 0.00

Transfer from Money Maket Account 0.00

PEG Reimbursement 0.00

Construction Grant 0.00

Total Receipts $0.00

Total Receipts Including Balance $262,060.23

Disbursements During Month By Check

From Check #1202 to Check #1202 224.15

Total Amount of Disbursements 224.15

Balance on Hand at End of Month $261,836.08

Reconciliation With Bank Statement

Total Amount of Cash Balance on Deposit

as shown by Bank statement 261,836.08

Amount of Outstanding Checks 0.00

Balance on Deposit 261,836.08

Received by Board of Trustees and This is to certify that the above

entered as part of the minutes of Board statement is in agreement with

Meeting held on ___________________ my bank statement.

_________________________________ __________________________

Secretary Business Manager

21



22



23



24



2018-19 Budget Line Balances

Account Name Budget Adjustments Adj. Budget Apr. Exp. Exp to date Encumbered Available % Available

Personnel

Salaries-Librarians 1,122,789 0 1,122,789 91,829 905,089 0 $217,700 19%

Salaries-Clerical 987,451 0 987,451 77,744 743,924 0 $243,527 25%

Salaries-Custodians 152,187 0 152,187 12,798 121,146 0 $31,041 20%

Retirement 285,626 0 285,626 0 283,682 0 $1,944 1%

SocSec/Medicare 173,483 0 173,483 13,515 133,616 0 $39,867 23%

Worker's Comp. 23,000 0 23,000 -5,944 12,907 0 $10,093 44%

Unemployment 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 N/A

Health Ins. 294,558 0 294,558 34,030 266,573 53 $27,932 9%

Disability Ins. 1,400 0 1,400 0 1,266 0 $134 10%

Materials

Adult books 171,000 29,435 200,435 10,313 119,539 10,619 $70,276 35%

Audiobooks 33,000 931 33,931 1,236 16,518 2,320 $15,093 44%

Ebooks 105,000 0 105,000 2,000 107,361 17,760 -$20,121 -19%

Electronic Resources 28,000 0 28,000 2,310 19,286 1,682 $7,032 25%

Periodicals 21,000 0 21,000 0 19,804 191 $1,004 5%

YS Books 85,000 16,253 101,253 4,696 55,763 5,505 $39,985 39%

YS Audiobooks 5,000 869 5,869 305 3,014 697 $2,157 37%

YS Media 7,000 5,288 12,288 674 8,922 755 $2,611 21%

Special Collections 10,500 1,582 12,082 892 10,970 1,148 -$35 0%

AS Media 58,000 7,805 65,805 3,663 30,669 2,295 $32,841 50%

Operations

Copiers and supplies 15,000 0 15,000 1,014 9,626 2,996 $2,378 16%

Office supplies 23,000 0 23,000 305 6,117 3,587 $13,296 58%

Custodial supplies 17,000 0 17,000 985 8,220 1,722 $7,058 42%

Postage 17,000 479 17,479 1,248 12,904 1,354 $3,221 18%

Printing 30,000 79 30,079 3,104 16,236 5,063 $8,780 29%

Van lease & oper. 1,500 0 1,500 0 345 353 $802 53%

Gas and Electric 65,000 0 65,000 3,848 46,699 0 $18,301 28%

Telecommunications 11,000 0 11,000 927 11,230 3,084 -$3,314 -30%

Water 3,000 0 3,000 0 3,094 0 -$94 -3%

Taxes-sewer&water 3,700 0 3,700 0 3,114 0 $586 16%

Refund property taxes 4,000 0 4,000 0 17,914 0 -$13,914 -348%

Prof. Services 12,000 550 12,550 500 4,353 1,559 $6,639 53%

Contract Services 37,500 0 37,500 6,435 18,486 2,489 $16,525 44%

Insurance 29,000 0 29,000 -2,592 24,157 0 $4,843 17%

Travel/Conference 10,000 0 10,000 155 5,402 0 $4,598 46%

Memberships 2,000 0 2,000 0 569 0 $1,431 72%

Special Programs 20,000 2,244 22,244 1,787 15,915 3,309 $3,020 14%

Furniture&Equipment 50,000 1,941 51,941 -7,246 31,873 1,970 $18,098 35%

IT Hardware & Software 42,000 4,721 46,721 3,788 32,730 5,667 $8,324 18%

Bld&Grnd. Repair 40,000 162 40,162 1,901 28,356 9,990 $1,816 5%

Furn/Equip Repair 2,000 0 2,000 176 868 654 $478 24%

Miscellaneous 3,500 0 3,500 77 -1,964 895 $4,570 131%

Audit Service 13,000 0 13,000 0 19,375 0 -$6,375 -49%

Accounting Service 13,000 0 13,000 864 13,932 682 -$1,614 -12%

UHLAN fees 50,000 0 50,000 945 36,554 11,859 $1,587 3%

Capital Expenditures 125,000 0 125,000 0 6,740 0 $118,261 95%

       TOTAL $4,203,194 $72,339 $4,275,533 $268,281 $3,232,896 $100,257 $942,379 22%

25



May 13, 2019 - Board of Trustee Meeting

Job Status Report

Previously Approved to Fill

Title

Current Hours 

to be 

Approved

Former 

Hours, if 

Changed Salary/Rate

Previous 

Incumbent End Date Reason

BOT 

Approved to 

Fill Status Name Start Date Type

Library Clerk PT 13.57 hrs/wk

$13.45/hour 

or per 

contract E. Romero 3/26/2019

Internal Move/ 

Schedule 

Change 4/8/2019 Filled M. Purcell 5/6/2019 Hire

Library Clerk PT 16.57 hrs/wk

$13.45/hour 

or per 

contract C. Nickarz 4/6/2019 Resignation 4/8/2019 Filled B. Tiernan 4/23/2019

Internal/ 

Schedule 

Change

Library Clerk PT 11.66 hrs/wk

$13.45/hour 

or per 

contract B. Tiernan 4/8/2019

Internal Move/ 

Schedule 

Change 4/8/2019 Filled A. Rusch 5/22/2019 Hire

Library Page 6 hrs/wk $11.10/hour N/A N/A N/A 4/8/2019 Filled S. Hamilton 4/9/2019 Hire

Library Page 11.67 hrs/wk $11.10/hour H. Wessel 4/16/2019 Resignation 4/8/2019 Filled J. O'Keeffe 4/15/2019 Hire

Custodial Worker PT 10 hrs/wk

$15.45/hour 

or per 

contract L. Luykx 5/17/2019 Resignation 4/8/2019

Action Requested

Positions Held

26



  
Director’s Report 

May 2019 
 
Building and Grounds 
  

The spring season has barely begun, and the maintenance staff and garden volunteers 
have already kicked into high gear preparing our grounds for the summer ahead.  The Delmar 
Progress Club has been very generous in supporting the purchase of annual plantings for the 
gardens. 

Some small drainage work has been completed, which should help alleviate some of the 
icing on the plaza next winter. 

We continue to work with Trane and our engineers at M/E to help fix continuing issues 
with the HVAC system.  We have had several meetings and phone calls with Trane about their 
proposal for an HVAC system maintenance contract. 
 
Public Service 
 

Wi-Fi access has been launched at the Colonial Acres Park.  We were able to launch the 
service before the town’s annual I Love My Park Day. 

The Seed Library continues to be very popular. Ninety-six patrons have checked out 451 
seed packets since April 4. Since the service was started on March 5, a total of 293 patrons have 
checked out 1,375 seed packets. The library has received positive comments about this new 
service. Tori said that one positive comment came from a staff member of the Radix Center who 
was selecting some seeds to grow with children at the Creighton Story Homes in Albany. The 
children have a garden there and had specifically requested to grow pumpkins. The patron was 
very happy to select some pumpkin and squash seeds for them, along with sunflowers to beautify 
their vegetable garden. 

Summer Teen Volunteer applications have been available beginning May 1 online, in the 
library and handed out by the librarians at their school visits.  Applications will be accepted 
through June 17 or until all training sessions are fill. The teens are asked to volunteer at least six 
hours over the summer and are required to attend an orientation session. 
 
 
Program Highlights 
 

The Spring Coffee and Conversation series has returned successfully. This continues to 
be a great partnership with Senior Services, and participants love the presentations. Mary 
managed to film the Mark Twain presentation with IT’s help and hopes to make it available 
electronically at some point. 

Spring Break programming for children and families was excellent this year. We had live 
birds of prey in the Community Room, Earth Day celebrations, movies and some great STEM 
building programs. Overall, participants were pleased with the quantity and variety we offered. 
 
Outreach 
 

We are in the process of establishing a Pop-Up Library to take out into the community.  
This will allow us to bring to new areas in the community more library services, such as the 

27



latest books and movies for kids and adults. We also plan to provide library card registration and 
offer an opportunity for patrons to drop off materials for return.  A collection of books and 
DVDs will be purchased just for these outreach events and will circulate for one or two weeks, 
depending on the item and will available for renewal. Upcoming scheduled Pop-Up Library 
events will be listed in Footnotes and online. We look forward to bringing the Pop-Up Library to 
the town parks, festivals, community events, schools and other locations within the BCSD area. 

Frank completed his enrichment series at Hamagrael. They enjoyed his chess club and hope 
to have him back again. The students loved the tournament prizes of 3D printed chess pieces. 

Tori, Michelle and Kate visited the Pit this month. 
Mary attended the town’s Eggstravaganza. It was our first year participating in this event, 

and everyone had a great time. Mary saw many families and brought along a spring craft to add 
to the festivities. 

Michael visited Kenwood Manor for a book talk, and went to Bethlehem Commons as well. 
Jody visited the Atria Delmar to start a new book club group. 
Tori visited BCMS to work on some haiku and origami for National Poetry Month. 
Tori collaborated on the middle school book club. They read “Renegades” and set their dates 

for May and June. 
Mary attended the BCSD K101 Fair at Slingerlands. She brought a sneak peek of the new 

suggested reading list and promoted some upcoming library programs. 
Anne attended the YMCA’s Healthy Kids Day. 
Michelle worked with the Mohawk Hudson Land Conservancy again this year to arrange an 

Earth Day walk. They had lovely weather and a great turn out. She’s hoping to collaborate with 
them more in the future. 

Michelle visited the Circle of Friends pre-school. She shared books and talked about 
friendship. 

Michelle visited the Hamagrael special needs class to share books and talk about friendship 
and Earth Day. 

Anne visited both Elsmere kindergarten classes to talk about Earth Day and share some 
stories. 

 
Meetings and Miscellany 

 
Once the new fence is installed, the new outdoor reading space will be open.  The official 

dedication in memory of our young patron Ian Boegel, will be held Saturday, June 29, at 1 p.m.  
With the weather warming up, we look forward to opening up this cozy outdoor reading nook, 
which will offer an inspiring, engaging and multi-sensory environment. 

The new G3 session has started. The students from the UAlbany MBA program will 
provide us with suggestions to increase our sustainability practices. We are excited to work with 
this new group. 

I was asked to present Civil Service 101 to the NYLA Leadership and Management 
Academy.  It is always fun to talk with future library leaders. 

I attended a Capital District Library Council meeting about oral history programs.  I 
highlighted the Studio Makerspace as a potential site for oral history interviews.  I look forward 
to more information about regional oral history initiatives. 

I was asked to record a piece for Wildwood highlighting our continued partnership with 
them to provide job training and job readiness for people in our community.  The library has 
been partnered with them for almost 20 years. 

28



 Several staff members attended the Bethlehem Chamber of Commerce Annual Awards 
Ceremony.  It is a wonderful community event and we love to cheer on the local award winners. 
 I was delighted to be asked to be a guest judge for the Center for Disabilities Services 
annual art show.  Not only did I get to help choose the award recipients, I got to select the pieces 
of art that will be displayed in the Delaware Avenue hallway this fall.  I am always inspired by 
the creativity of the artists. 
 
Individual/Small Group continuing education for staff 

 
Michelle: 
Completed Project ENABLE Accessibility Training comprised of six modules (Disability 
Awareness, Disability Law & Policy, Creating an Accessible Library, Planning Inclusive 
Programs and Instruction, Assistive Technology in Libraries, Targeting Autism in Libraries). 
Watched the WebJunction archived webinar, Supercharge Your Storytime Assessment: Using 
Data to Tell Your Story. 
Viewed the archived from the Association for Library Service to Children’s (ALSC), Early 
Literacy and STEAM. 
 
 
Tori: 
Attended the Greatest Of All Time (G.O.A.T.) Teen Services Meeting.  Her report is attached. 

 
Anne: 

Viewed the Booklist webinar: Middle Grade Mania, Part One, a discussion of new books 
coming out for ages 8-12 by representatives from Penguin, Random House, and Disney Book 
Group, as well as some of the authors.  
 
Chris O. and Laura S. attended the UHLS training on customer service “The Customer 

Experience” April 25, 2019.  
Catherine attended Grow with Google April 25, 2019. The training highlighted pre-

developed courses by Google on job readiness, digital skills training, resume writing, and 
business tools.   

 
 
 
Geoffrey Kirkpatrick, Library Director  

 

29



 

30



Grow	with	Google	Vermont		
Catherine Stollar Peters 4/25/2019 

Google hosted two public trainings at public libraries in Vermont during the month of April. The trainings 

were geared toward libraries and non‐profits, small business owners, veterans, and the general public. 

The trainings provided an introduction to existing tools and training materials available for teaching and 

learning about digital skills. Many of the tools have broad applications outside of the Google platform.   

Applications for Bethlehem Programs: 

Add to our stellar computer programming courses for the following populations/following topics with 

course training materials and syllabi provided by Google on the Google Partners Page: 

https://grow.google/partnerresources/ 

 Job Seekers: build a resume, search for jobs, build digital skills 

 Teens: Applied digital skills 

 Adults: Applied digital skills 

 Small business: Primer app, Google My Business, Speed test, Google Ads 

 Partner with Chamber on teaching small business courses 

All courses have lesson plans, assignments, and small videos developed by Google available online at our 

partner resources page. 

Internal applications for Bethlehem Organization: 

 Business Profile on Google  

o update hours 

o respond to comment(s) 

o mobile speed test 

o Primer (marketing content in app) 

o Google Ads 

 ALA Google MicroGrants (New York has not opened yet) 

 Libraries Lead with Digital Skills PLA/ALA initative 

 Post Grow with Google .gif on social media 

 BETH has access to Google provided resources at https://grow.google/partnerresources/  

 

31



Tori Russo 
G.O.A.T. Teen Services Meetup 2.0  
April 11, 2019 
East Greenbush Community Library 
 

Session 1: Getting Teens in the Door 

This was run as a discussion session between all attendees (I was in the room with medium and small 

libraries). Some tips that others had included doing most programs as community service hours and 

offering volunteer credit for teens who help advertise programs, offering programs that tweens/teens 

and parents can do together (which has been successful here a couple of times), being seen in the 

community at other organizations’ events so teens and families can get to know you, setting up an SRP 

table in the school lunchroom with giveaways, providing regularly scheduled programs that teens can 

rely on, and getting your teen program and SRP information on SNN notifications and/or school 

announcements. Some of the ideas discussed are things we are already doing here, though others were 

helpful to hear discussed. I would like to try doing SRP visits to the middle school lunchroom and have 

contacted the middle school librarian about possibly setting this up. 

 

Session 2: Panel Discussion on Teen Volunteers 

Three librarians had a short panel discussion about how their teen volunteer programs work. None of 

them had nearly the number of teen volunteers that we have over the summer, so most of the tips 

weren’t that helpful for me. 

 

Session 3: “Non‐author” Talk 

This was originally supposed to be a Skype talk by a guest author, but the plans fell through and there 

was no author. The backup plan was to show a YouTube video of a talk Jason Reynolds gave called 

“Finding Humility Through Chaos” but there were potential copyright issues with showing it to a group. 

Mary led a very brief discussion about the themes in the Jason Reynolds talk, discussing how to bridge 

the “chaos” between adults and teens using humility, intimacy, and gratitude. They also provided 

everyone with the link to the talk to view on our own, but I haven’t had a chance to view it yet. 

 

Session 4: Hands on Tech 

Jack Scott put out lots of tech toys that he has used in the library for us to check out up close. He 

mentioned a few fun programs he has done, including programming Raspberry Pis to scan for various 

objects around a room, building a theramin‐like machine called a Drawdio, programming light strips 

called NeoPixels, and RFID nail stickers. 

32



 

Session 5: Collection Development 

This was another large group discussion. Some of the challenges that were discussed included balancing 

book space with other uses of the library and how long to hold on to items, particularly items in a series. 

One helpful tip that someone gave was to use phrasing that doesn’t use the words “order” or “request” 

when placing requests for patrons, as teens may sometimes feel uncomfortable with requesting items 

because they think we’re spending money “ordering” books just for them, or doing a lot of extra work 

just for them. One librarian mentioned that she uses the phrase “I’ll put you on the list for it” so that 

teens don’t feel uncomfortable. 

 

Session 6: Programming 

This was a large group discussion with the other small and medium libraries. People provided 

suggestions of successful programs they’ve held, including an Adulting 101 series and LGBTQ+ programs. 

There was also a discussion of programs that have had big draws of patrons, including cooking 

programs, escape rooms, and paint and sips. One librarian mentioned having a “Boredom Bowl” on the 

service desk, that was filled with suggestions of things to do in the library for when teens are hanging 

around bored and looking for something to do. 

33



Library Collection 2017-18 Current Total
   Adult fiction 25,650 25,707
   Adult non-fiction 29,279 29,053
   Adult audio 7,387 7,184
   Adult video 7,462 8,087
   Young adult  fiction 5,493 5,536
   Young adult nonfiction 498 518
   Young adult audiobooks 322 356
   Children's fiction 26,831 25,882
   Children's non-fiction 15,094 15,203
   Children's audiobooks 1,380 1,503
   Children's video 2,130 1,945
   OverDrive - UHLS Shared 59,361 67,280
   e-magazines 113 107
   Electronic (games, ereaders) 467 478
Total 181,467 188,839
Library Programs Apr-19 Apr-18 % change 2017-18 F-Y-T-D
   Programs 85 74 14.9% 854 742
   Program attendance 2162 2,016 7.2% 26,583 21,905
   Outreach Programs 18 19 -5.3% 304 164
   Outreach Attendance 602 715 -15.8% 8,919 3,662
Circulation Apr-19 Apr-18 % change 2017-18 F-Y-T-D
   Adult fiction 11,888 11,442 3.9% 143,450 125,074
   Adult non-fiction 8,268 8,117 1.9% 94,927 80,713
   Adult audio 4,075 4,264 -4.4% 52,342 41,566
   Adult video 8,543 9,310 -8.2% 106,685 93,492
   Adult magazines 1,815 1,738 4.4% 19,756 19,049
   Young adult fiction 1,642 1,557 5.5% 18,900 16,030
   Young adult nonfiction 128 124 3.2% 1,379 1,270
   Young adult audiobooks 114 85 33.1% 1,243 1,110
   Young adult magazines 6 5 20.0% 98 50
   Children's fiction 11,170 11,516 -3.0% 144,538 115,334
   Children's non-fiction 3,696 3,839 -3.7% 41,533 32,389
   Children's audiobooks 641 566 13.3% 7,249 6,379
   Children's video 1,079 1,233 -12.5% 15,823 13,384
   Children's magazines 39 30 30.0% 435 310
   Electronic (games, ereaders) 690 508 35.8% 6,581 5,769
Total 53,793 54,335 -1.0% 654,937 551,919
Interlibrary Loan Apr-19 Apr-18 % change 2017-18 F-Y-T-D
   Borrowed from others 7,470 7,052 5.9% 86,973 72,202
   Loaned to others 5,283 5,232 1.0% 67,687 57,173
Miscellaneous Apr-19 Apr-18 % change 2017-18 F-Y-T-D
   Visits to our home page 93,608 65,075 43.8% 939,696 683,167
   Public use of meeting rooms 49 35 40.0% 484 399
   Public meeting attendance 560 443 26.4% 5,860 5,752
   Staff use & library programs 95 169 -43.8% 1,355 828
   Study room sessions 433 417 3.8% 4,935 4,265
   Tech room use 36 64 -43.8% 364 277
   Door count 25,749 28,051 -8.2% 325,408 260,067
   Registered BPL borrowers 61 113 -46.0% 1,117 820
   Computer signups 3,539 3,276 8.0% 37,496 28,255
   Museum Pass use 156 137 13.9% 1,666 1,520
   E-book use 6,129 4,440 38.0% 55,407 58,336
   E-magazine use 1,174 1,053 11.5% 12,186 11,227
   Equipment 469 401 17.0% 4,444 4,482
   Wireless Use 17,949 8,163 119.9% 109,852 147,334

34



 

Monthly Gas and Electric Comparisons

Date # of days Total Therms Use per day Cost Cost per day Cost per therm # of day kWh Use per day Cost Cost per day Cost per kWh

3/13/2017 31 2,015 65 $1,188.31 $38.33 $0.59 32 33,792 1,056 $2,837.83 $88.68 $0.08
3/13/2018 33 1,833 56 $1,238.17 $37.52 $0.68 32 30,336 948 $2,672.72 $83.52 $0.09

4/12/2017 30 1,862 62 $1,037.51 $34.58 $0.56 29 29,568 1,020 $3,267.38 $112.67 $0.11
4/11/2018 28 1,555 56 $969.24 $34.62 $0.62 29 26,496 914 $2,280.77 $78.65 $0.09

5/15/2017 33 937 28 $594.98 $18.03 $0.63 31 39,552 1,276 $3,990.92 $128.74 $0.10
5/11/2018 30 776 26 $522.08 $17.40 $0.67 30 29,568 986 $2,810.83 $93.69 $0.10

6/13/2017 29 607 21 $415.62 $14.33 $0.68 32 47,616 1,488 $4,489.56 $140.30 $0.09
6/13/2018 33 56 2 $67.42 $2.04 $1.20 33 33,792 1,024 $3,523.65 $106.78 $0.10

7/13/2017 30 604 20 $259.97 $8.67 $0.43 30 57,600 1,920 $5,198.19 $173.27 $0.09
7/12/2018 29 36 1 $47.11 $1.62 $1.31 29 36,096 1,245 $4,151.89 $143.17 $0.12

8/11/2017 29 476 16 $259.97 $8.96 $0.55 29 54,144 1,867 $5,302.17 $182.83 $0.10
8/10/2018 29 35 1 $44.40 $1.53 $1.27 29 39,936 1,377 $4,473.49 $154.26 $0.11

9/12/2017 32 538 17 $285.37 $8.92 $0.53 32 49,536 1,548 $4,285.62 $133.93 $0.09
9/11/2018 32 38 1 $46.65 $1.46 $1.23 32 39,168 1,224 $4,428.29 $138.38 $0.11

10/11/2017 29 577 20 $304.89 $10.51 $0.53 29 51,840 1,788 $4,526.94 $156.10 $0.09
10/11/2018 30 99 3 $86.02 $2.87 $0.87 30 34,176 1,139 $3,643.09 $121.44 $0.11

11/9/2017 29 780 27 $401.22 $13.84 $0.51 29 36,480 1,258 $3,526.99 $121.62 $0.10
11/8/2018 28 1,420 51 $754.30 $26.94 $0.53 28 27,264 974 $2,432.22 $86.87 $0.09

12/12/2017 33 1,606 49 $798.17 $24.19 $0.50 33 29,184 884 $2,618.16 $79.34 $0.09
12/11/2018 33 3,661 111 $1,993.69 $60.41 $0.54 33 31,872 966 $3,051.82 $92.48 $0.10

1/11/2018 30 2,964 99 $1,474.51 $49.15 $0.50 30 30,336 1,011 $3,501.04 $116.70 $0.12
1/11/2019 31 3,801 123 $2,727.32 $87.98 $0.72 31 31,872 1,028 $2,832.86 $91.38 $0.09

2/9/2018 29 2,380 82 $1,388.85 $47.89 $0.58 29 28,800 993 $3,871.09 $133.49 $0.13
2/11/2019 31 4,947 160 $2,863.48 $92.37 $0.58 31 33,408 1,078 $3,451.77 $111.35 $0.10

3/13/2018 33 1,833 56 $1,238.17 $37.52 $0.68 32 30,336 948 $2,672.72 $83.52 $0.09
3/12/2019 29 3,562 123 $1,746.64 $60.23 $0.49 29 29,952 1,033 $2,687.90 $92.69 $0.09

4/11/2018 28 1,555 56 $969.24 $34.62 $0.62 29 26,496 914 $2,280.77 $78.65 $0.09
4/10/2019 29 2,054 71 $1,102.54 $38.02 $0.54 29 30,336 1,046 $2,629.48 $90.67 $0.09

C:\Users\Geoff\OneDrive - Bethlehem Public Library\Director's Documents\Statistics\energy comparisons new format 4/17/2019

35



Memo 

To: BPL Board 

From: Geoff Kirkpatrick 

Re: Scanning Proposal 

Date: May 9, 2019 

 

Catherine, in her role as library records manager, investigated scanning library HR and payroll records.  

Some records we are required to keep in perpetuity, others should be destroyed on proscribed cycles 

according to the library’s records management policy. 

Some of the permanent records needed to be relocated from filing cabinets in the boiler room per our 

annual fire inspection.  A proposal to scan these is attached. 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



 
 
 

SUBMITTED TO: Bethlehem Public Library DATE: 5/6/19 

    ATTN: Kevin Coffey 

NAME OF JOB: Studio Room - Ceiling     

TYPE OF WORK: Acoustical Ceiling    

Subject to all terms and conditions contained herein, we submit this proposal for all labor, and equipment required to 
complete the following work per drawings 

Inclusions: 
 Scope: Install new 2x2 Hi‐NRC Acoustical Ceiling in Studio room as Follows: 
 Mobilize to Site. 
 Remove and relocate steel pipe lighting support frame to below new ceiling level, leaving mains in place and 

moving laterals from above to below main supports. Removal of existing lights by owner. 
 Remove existing surface mounted lights and fire detectors and relocate branch circuit wiring to new ceiling. 
 Install new wall angle, 2x2 grid and extend existing Electrical and HVAC system components as required into 

new ceiling system. 
 Provide (4) new 2x2 LED lights into new ceiling grid. Provide new dimmer controls at existing switch locations. 

(Up to 2 locations provided) 
 Install ceiling tile at completion of mechanical work. 

 General information: 

 Union carpenters. 
 Work to be done during normal working hours. 
 Clean up of our work. 

Excludes: 
 Anything not mentioned in the inclusions. 

 Additional Emergency/Exit lighting, certification of relocated fire alarm detector by owner. 

 Painting and finishing of existing items not included in ACT ceiling work. 

 Building Permit Not Required per Town Building Inspector. 
 

RW Dake Ceiling Installation & Material including light support relocation labor  $6,075.00 

HVAC & Electrical Subcontractors  $3,393.00 

Base Bid; Total  $9,468.00 Tax Exempt. 

 
Terms: See Attached General Conditions on Following Page 

Please Sign and Return one copy. 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Accepted: R.W. Dake & Co., Inc. 
(Purchaser) 

 

By:    By:  Brian Carr                               
  (Name and Title)   Brian Carr – Project Manager 

46



General Conditions: 
 

a) R.W. Dake & Co., Inc. shall not be responsible for delays or defaults where occasioned by any causes of any kind and extend 
beyond its control, including, but not limited to, armed conflict or economic dislocation resulting there from: embargoes, 
shortages of labor, raw materials, production facilities or transportation; labor difficulties; civil disorders of any kind; action  
of civil or military authorities (including priorities and allocations); fires, floods and accidents. 

b) You will receive, and properly protect from all damage and loss, the materials necessary for the carrying out this contract, 
and allow up free and reasonable use of light, heat, water, power, available elevators, hoists, etc. 

c) Surfaces on which the materials are to be applied shall be given us to work on at one time so that work will not be interrupted 
and the surfaces shall be in a clean, dry and accessible condition, and suitable for receiving our work. 

d) No credit or allowance shall be made for alterations, unless we have agreed to such credit or allowance in writing before such 
alterations are made. 

e) We shall not be responsible for any damages or expenses resulting from specifications not conforming to the requirements of 
the law. 

f) Work called for herein is to be performed during our regular working hours. Overtime rates will be charged for all work 
performed outside such hours. 

g) Expenses of sending our men to the job on your notifications before surfaces are ready for the applications of our materials as 
agreed, or expenses due to any delays for which you may be responsible during the progress of the work shall be borne by 
you. 

h) All electrical fixtures and other obstructions to our work shall be taken care of by others, unless specifically described in our 
work on this proposal. 

i) Any sales, excise, processing or any other direct tax hereafter put into effect upon the manufacture, sale or applications of 
materials supplied in accordance with this proposal or any contract based thereon shall be added to the contract price. 

j) We carry liability, property damage, workman’s compensation, etc., insurance, as required by the current laws. 

k) Actions on claims arising hereunder shall be barred unless brought within one year after they arise. 

l) Any expense incurred by us for insurance or bond to cover our liability under any “hold harmless” or “indemnity” clause or 
clause of a similar nature in any contract, specifications, letter or acceptance notice submitted by you or your contractors 
which in any way requires us to assume any liability which is not imposed on us by law shall be paid by you. 

m) This proposal does not include costs associated with testing for asbestos or lead paint. Customer must certify that the 
existing materials on site are free from asbestos and lead paint. 

 
 
Terms of payment when Installation is Included: 

Net cash 60 days on all work started and completed in one calendar month. On all other work: On the 10th of each month, the value 
of all materials and labor furnished during the preceding month is due and payable. All accounts overdue as per above payment 
schedule are subject to a 1 ½% per month service charge unless other arrangements are made prior to acceptance of this proposal. 

This proposal is subject to written acceptance within 30 days of its date, and will only become binding upon us as a contract when 
approved for credit and signed below. 

 
 
 
 

 

R.W. Dake & Co., Inc. 

47



Anticipated Board Projects 

Schedule for 2019 

 

 

o March 

 Book drop off/Service to Glenmont Discussion 

 Auditor RFP – vote to send 

 Long range plan/ Capital Plan meeting 

 Vote on proposed budget – deadline 

 

o April 

 First Night 2020 participation 

 Long Range Capital Plan proposal discussion 

o May 

 Select auditor 

 Budget presentation to the public 

 HVAC service contract discussion 

 Establish nominating committee 

 Long range capital plan discussion – cont. 

 

o June 

 Investment strategy discussion 

 Long range capital plan – proposal review 

 Discuss long range service plan 

 Review chart of financial responsibilities  

 Nominating committee – cont. 

o July 

 Investment Policy (Yearly re‐authorization needed) 

 Annual board authorizations 

o December 

 Long Range Plan (including capital plan) completed and 

approved 

 

48



 518-439-9314 • www.bpkids.org • www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org

Part ii
Sunday June 9 • 3pm

See how our eggs are doing and learn about 
the embryo development process.

meet the chickens
Saturday June 1 • 3pm

Meet a rooster and a hen while learning 
how an egg incubator works.

Hatch!
Help us hatch a brood of chicks inside the library this June 

with guidance from environmental educator George Steele. 
Stop by the Children’s Place to check out the incubator 

and see how the eggs are doing.

want to learn more? come to:

an incubation eggsperiment

49



for seniors

Adults 60 years and up are invited 
to don their poodle skirts and rolled up jeans 

as we take a trip down memory lane at 
Bethlehem Town Hall.

FRIDAY MAY 10 • 2-4PM

 
Registration required; 

call (518) 439-4955, ext. 1176. 
Co-hosted by Bethlehem Senior Services 

in conjunction with Bethlehem Senior Projects, Inc.

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org

518-439-9314

 Enjoy live music, refreshments, green screen 
portraits and an Elvis impersonator!

vvv

for seniors

Adults 60 years and up are invited 
to don their poodle skirts and rolled up jeans 

as we take a trip down memory lane at 
Bethlehem Town Hall.

FRIDAY MAY 10 • 2-4PM

 
Registration required; 

call (518) 439-4955, ext. 1176. 
Co-hosted by Bethlehem Senior Services 

in conjunction with Bethlehem Senior Projects, Inc.

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org

518-439-9314

 Enjoy live music, refreshments, green screen 
portraits and an Elvis impersonator!

vvv

for seniors

Adults 60 years and up are invited 
to don their poodle skirts and rolled up jeans 

as we take a trip down memory lane at 
Bethlehem Town Hall.

FRIDAY MAY 10 • 2-4PM

 
Registration required; 

call (518) 439-4955, ext. 1176. 
Co-hosted by Bethlehem Senior Services 

in conjunction with Bethlehem Senior Projects, Inc.

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org

518-439-9314

 Enjoy live music, refreshments, green screen 
portraits and an Elvis impersonator!

vvv

50



 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org
518-439-9314

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
451 DELAWARE AVE., DELMAR

SUMMER READING 
BLASTS OFF!

WEDNESDAY JUNE 26 

Balloon art with 
Daryl Baldwin at 4pm!

Read-in at 4:30pm!

   Music by The Wheel 
at 7pm!

An event for all ages!

 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org
518-439-9314

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
451 DELAWARE AVE., DELMAR

SUMMER READING 
BLASTS OFF!

WEDNESDAY JUNE 26 

Balloon art with 
Daryl Baldwin at 4pm!

Read-in at 4:30pm!

   Music by The Wheel 
at 7pm!

An event for all ages!

 www.bethlehempubliclibrary.org
518-439-9314

BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY 
451 DELAWARE AVE., DELMAR

SUMMER READING 
BLASTS OFF!

WEDNESDAY JUNE 26 

Balloon art with 
Daryl Baldwin at 4pm!

Read-in at 4:30pm!

   Music by The Wheel 
at 7pm!

An event for all ages!

51



2 • 0 • 1 • 9
BETHLEHEM PUBLIC LIBRARY

SUMMER 
LIBRARY

AT THE

451 DELAWARE AVE., DELMAR, NY 12054
WWW.BETHLEHEMPUBLICLIBRARY.ORG

518-439-9314

SUMMER 2019 
PROGRAMMING FOR 
TWEENS AND TEENS
We’ll have tons of fun programs 
for tweens and teens this 
summer, including art classes, 
gaming programs, science and 
tech events, and more!

We’re kicking things off  
with a Read-In and concert  
Wednesday June 26 at 4pm.

Check for the rest of our  
summer schedule on the 
library’s website after June 17.

LIBRARY BOOK 
REVIEW CREW

If you love to read, join our  
Book Review Crew this  
summer for a chance to read  
and review books ahead of  
their publication!

Sign up for the info session  
to get involved: 
Friday July 12 • noon

WWW.BETHLEHEMPUBLICLIBRARY.ORG

52



SUMMER READING 
CHALLENGE 2019

This summer, BPL challenges 
YOU to complete all  
16 activities for a chance to 
win some awesome prizes!

Sign up begins June 26.
Every time you complete three 
activities, stop by for your prize!

READ IT FORWARD
No due dates, no late fines — 
just Read It Forward! All you 
need to do is read the book, 
write your comments in the back, 
and pass it on to someone else.

This year’s title is “Miles Morales: 
Spider-Man” by Jason Reynolds. 
Get a copy from a friend, or check 
the library’s RIF display.

Read It Forward is a collaborative project 
of Upper Hudson Library System and 

Mohawk Valley Library System.

TEEN VOLUNTEERS
If you’re entering the 6th-12th grade in 
the fall and are interested in volunteering 
at the library, applications will be accepted 
from May 1 through June 17.

Summer teen volunteers help out with 
all aspects of the Summer Reading 
Program, including working the desk to 
award prizes, assisting with programs for 
children, presenting storytimes, and more. 
Volunteers are required to do at least 
six hours over the summer and are able 
to schedule their own shifts within the 
library’s scheduled programs.

All volunteers will be required to attend 
one of the following training dates:

Monday June 24 • 6:30-8:30pm 
Tuesday July 2 • 10am-noon 
Thursday July 11 • 6:30-8:30pm 
Wednesday July 24 • 2-4pm 
Tuesday July 30 • 2-4pm

Applications are available starting May 1 in  
the library and on the website. They must 
be returned in person at the Children’s Desk. 
Applications will be accepted on a 
first-come basis until June 17 or when 
all spaces are filled, whichever comes first.  
When you drop off an application, you’ll 
receive a confirmation sheet. Please be sure 
you don’t leave without getting one.

Thanks for helping out this summer!

53




